

FORT WAYNE SENATE AGENDA  
MONDAY  
January 13, 2025  
12:00 P.M., KT G46

1. Call to order
2. Approval of the minutes of December 9
3. Acceptance of the agenda – J. Nowak
4. Reports of the Faculty Chairs
  - a. Past Chair (UPC Representative) – B. Buldt
  - b. Chair (Presiding Officer) – C. Gurgur
  - c. Chair-Elect (IFC Representative) – J. Nowak
5. Special business of the day
  - a. Report in Response to EC Charge to URAC Concerning Daycare at PFW, SR 24-24 – URAC, J. McHann
6. Unfinished business
7. Committee reports requiring action
  - a. Academic Regulations to Extend the Course Withdrawal Deadline, SD 24-12 – EPC, S. Buttes (for discussion/action)
8. New business
9. Question time
10. Committee reports “for information only”
  - a. Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force 2023-2024 Report, SR 24-23 – ARTF, J. Johns
  - b. Composition of the Intellectual Diversity Complaint Advisory Review Board, SR 24-25 – EC, J. Nowak
11. The general good and welfare of the University
12. Adjournment\*

\*The meeting will adjourn or recess by 1:15 p.m.

<b>Approved</b>	<b>Opposed</b>	<b>Abstention</b>	<b>Absent</b>	<b>Non-Voting</b>
K. Barker			J. Johns	C. Ortsey
B. Buldt			J. Nowak	
C. Gurgur				
J. McHann				
L. Roberts				

---

**Attachments:**

- “Report in Response to EC Charge to URAC Concerning Daycare at PFW” (SR No. 24-24)
- “Academic Regulations to Extend the Course Withdrawal Deadline” (SD 24-12)
- “Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force 2023-2024 Report” (SR No. 24-23)
- “Composition of the Intellectual Diversity Complaint Advisory Review Board” (SR No. 24-25)

MEMORANDUM

TO: Cigdem Z. Gurgur, Chair  
Senate Executive Committee

FROM: Holly Hullinger, Chair  
Educational Policy Committee

DATE: 12/10/2024

SUBJ: Academic Regulations to Extend the Course Withdrawal Deadline

---

**WHEREAS** the attached memorandum is reviewed and approved by the Educational Policy Committee;

**BE IT RESOLVED** that the attached resolution be considered by the Senate.

<b>Approved</b>	<b>Opposed</b>	<b>Abstention</b>	<b>Absent</b>	<b>Non-Voting</b>
Michael Wolf				
Terri Swim				
Abby Blackmon				
Stephen Buttes				
Sherrie Steiner				
Jaiyanth Daniel				
Tara Lewis				
Jenna Rupp				
Andres Montenegro				
Sarah Wagner				

---

## Memorandum

**To:** Educational Policy Committee

**From:** Abby Blackmon, Director of Student Conduct and Care; David Cochran, Professor of Systems Engineering; Kent Johnson, Executive Director for Academic Accountability and Student Success; Noor O’Neill, Professor of Anthropology

**Date:** Tuesday, November 5, 2024

**Subject:** Updating PFW Academic Regulations to Extend the Course Withdrawal Deadline

---

**WHEREAS** [Senate Document \(SD\) 16-45](#) and Sections 3.8 and 3.9 of the PFW Academic Regulations allow students to withdraw from 16-week courses up through week 9 of the semester; and in weeks 10 through 16, students can request an exception to the withdrawal deadline.

**WHEREAS** the grading timelines in individual courses and information available to students provided by different instructors vary; and

**WHEREAS** the decision to withdraw or remain in a course can have long-lasting impacts on a student’s academic progress and financial well-being; and

**WHEREAS** the decision to withdraw from a course is one of the most consequential academic decisions students have to make in college, and a large proportion of students face this decision in their first year, and students will benefit from having more time to make an informed choice about course withdrawal, including benefiting from having more information on which to base the decision; and

**WHEREAS** primary role advisors play a central role in helping students make this decision, but the current timeline makes this difficult for them to play that role given that the current withdrawal deadline falls during a peak advising period; and

**WHEREAS** data suggest that the later in a semester that a student withdraws from a course, the more likely they are to succeed in the class when/if they retake it; and

**WHEREAS** there are fewer requirements for withdrawing before the regular deadline, allowing students to remove themselves from class without additional barriers that may be found in the exception to the withdrawal deadline process; and

**WHEREAS** the current Academic Regulations do not differentiate between the critical terms of a course “drop” and a course “withdrawal” as currently used on campus and discussed with students; and

**WHEREAS** this proposed extension aligns PFW with the timeline of other Purdue campuses and aspirational peers; and

**WHEREAS** the Financial Aid and Registrar's Offices must process course withdrawals and publishes the withdraw deadline more than one semester in advance,

**BE IT RESOLVED** that the window to withdraw from a 16-week class be extended from week 9 to week 13; and

**BE IT RESOLVED** that the window to withdraw from shorter courses be adjusted appropriately; and

**BE IT RESOLVED** that the changes be implemented in Fall 2025, to leave time for the Financial Aid and Registrar's Offices to update their processes, plan ahead for the shift in workload, and publish revised deadlines to the campus community in a timely matter; and

**BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED** that the relevant portions of Academic Regulations sections 3.8.2 be revised as indicated below.

## Edits with Track Changes

3. 8.2: Course drops and withdrawals (cancellations of registration). A student may drop or withdraw from one or more courses, subject to the time limits below and the restrictions described in ~~this s~~Sections 3.8 and and in section-3.9 by presenting a request to at the Registrar's Office, the department of the student's major, and/ or through Self-service in the online registration system.

The following table outlines course drop, withdrawal, and exception deadlines for 16-week courses. The proportional dates for shorter sessions can be found on the Academic Calendar.

### Weeks Restrictions

<b>Weeks</b>	<b>Restrictions</b>
<u>Course Drop:</u> First week of classes (or equivalent, based on course length. See chart below.)	<u>Students are able to drop one or more courses through the online registration system. Any dropped courses are not recorded on the student's record. College/School/Division policy determines whether an academic advisor's approval is required. Course is not recorded on the student record.</u>
<u>Course Withdrawal:</u> <u>Weeks 2 through 139</u>	<u>Students must submit a request through the Registrar's Office. Courses are recorded with a grade of W on the student's record. College/School/Division policy determines whether an academic advisor's approval is required. Course is recorded with grade of W on the student record.</u>
<u>Request for an Exception to the Withdrawal Deadline:</u> <u>Weeks 140 through 16</u>	<u>Courses cannot normally be <del>withdrawn</del> <del>dropped</del> during this period <u>except in serious, non-academic, extenuating circumstances.- Students should contact the Office of Student Conduct &amp; CARE for this request.</u> If a <del>drop</del><u>request for an exception to the withdrawal deadline</u> is approved, the course is recorded with a grade of W on the student record.</u>

The following table displays the point in time a withdrawn grade will be recorded on the student's permanent record, based on course length.

Number of Weeks the course meets	Course Drop without Withdrawal Grade	Withdrawal Grade Recorded
9 or more	Days 1-7	Day 8 and thereafter
3 to 8	Days 1-3	Day 4 and thereafter
2	Days 1-2	Day 3 and thereafter
1	Day 1	Day 2 and thereafter

Day 1 of a course is the first day of the term or part of the term. All calendar days are counted, including weekends.

The opportunity to drop a class is restricted as specified below: The following restrictions may apply when a student is seeking to drop or withdraw from one or more courses:

3.8.2.1: Alleged academic dishonesty. Students will not be permitted to drop or withdraw from a class in which there is an pending allegation or finding of a violation of the academic dishonesty policy.

3.8.2.2: ~~Late-term drops~~ Withdrawals related to academic performance. If a student decides to drop or withdraw from a class due to academic performance, this must be completed prior to Week 13 of the semester or equivalent dates for shorter sessions. -After the ~~ninth-thirteenth~~ week (or equivalent), students will not be permitted to ~~drop~~ withdraw from a class due to poor academic performance in the class.

3.8.2.3: ~~Late-term drops~~ Withdrawals unrelated to academic performance. After the ~~ninth thirteenth~~ week (or equivalent), students must submit a request for an exception to the withdrawal deadline. This request must be a non-academic, extenuating circumstance beyond the student's control that prevented them from withdrawing by the deadline and is supported by appropriate documentation. ~~and with the approval of the student's academic advisor and the student's dean/division director, a student may drop a course when the reason for requesting the drop is unrelated to the student's academic performance in the course.~~

3.8.2.4: Post-term ~~drops~~ withdrawals or issues. After the end of the sixteenth week, students must submit a request for an exception to the withdrawal deadline. If there is an error in the grading of a course, the student should work with the instructor by following a course may be dropped only by following the procedure for a change of grade (see Section 6.6).

3.8.3: Change of Pass/Not-Pass option. A student may change the Pass/Not-Pass option for a course during the first four weeks of a regular semester or the first two weeks of a summer session by obtaining the signature of the academic advisor next to the appropriate notation on the schedule-revision form.

3.8.4: Change of auditing option. A student may alternate between audit and credit status during an academic session. A change from audit to credit or credit to audit may occur only during the first six weeks. The regular audit deadline is the Friday ending the first week of class. The late audit deadline is the Friday ending the sixth week of class. Approval of a regular change of auditing status in the first week of class requires a signature or written acknowledgment from the student's advisor and a representative from the Financial Aid Office (when applicable). Approval of a late change in auditing status during weeks two through six requires a signature or written acknowledgment from the course instructor, academic advisor, and a representative from the Financial Aid Office (when applicable).

3.9: Withdrawal from the university. Withdrawal from the university is normally accomplished by withdrawing from each course in which the student was enrolled. Special circumstances which can affect the withdrawal are specified below.

3.9.1: Withdrawal for military service. Any student called to active military duty may present a copy of their military service orders and (a) withdraw from all courses and receive a 100% refund of tuition and fees at any time during the semester through the end of final examinations or (b) with the permission of each instructor, receive an Incomplete or final grade in the courses taken. Such requests and documentation may be presented by the student or other responsible party who has the student's permission to make the request. Refunds of fees will not be made if the student receives a grade and credit for the course, and all refunds will be adjusted as required

by financial aid regulations. If a withdrawal is processed after the fourth week of classes, the grade of W will be assigned.

3.9.2: Withdrawal for personal circumstances. Students who seek to withdraw from PFW after the ~~ninth~~ thirteenth week of classes, based on personal circumstances, should contact the Office of Student Conduct & CARE for guidance about the process.

### Edits- Clean Copy

3. 8.2: Course drops and withdrawals (cancellations of registration). A student may drop or withdraw from one or more courses, subject to the time limits below and the restrictions described in Sections 3.8 and 3.9 by presenting a request to the Registrar’s Office, the department of the student’s major, and/or through Self-service in the online registration system.

The following table outlines course drop, withdrawal, and exception deadlines for 16-week courses. The proportional dates for shorter sessions can be found on the Academic Calendar.

<b>Weeks</b>	<b>Restrictions</b>
Course Drop: First week of classes (or equivalent, based on course length. See chart below.)	Students are able to drop one or more courses through the online registration system. Any dropped courses are not recorded on the student’s record.
Course Withdrawal: Weeks 2 through 13	Students must submit a request through the Registrar’s Office. Courses are recorded with a grade of W on the student’s record.
Request for an Exception to the Withdrawal Deadline: Weeks 14 through 16	Courses cannot normally be withdrawn during this period except in serious, non-academic, extenuating circumstances. Students should contact the Office of Student Conduct & CARE for this request. If a request for an exception to the withdrawal deadline is approved, the course is recorded with a grade of W on the student record.

The following table displays the point in time a withdrawn grade will be recorded on the student’s permanent record, based on course length.

Number of Weeks the course meets	Course Drop without Withdrawal Grade	Withdrawal Grade Recorded
9 or more	Days 1-7	Day 8 and thereafter
3 to 8	Days 1-3	Day 4 and thereafter
2	Days 1-2	Day 3 and thereafter
1	Day 1	Day 2 and thereafter



Day 1 of a course is the first day of the term or part of the term. All calendar days are counted, including weekends.

The following restrictions may apply when a student is seeking to drop or withdraw from one or more courses:

3.8.2.1: Alleged academic dishonesty. Students will not be permitted to drop or withdraw from a class in which there is a pending allegation or finding of a violation of the academic dishonesty policy.

3.8.2.2: Withdrawals related to academic performance. If a student decides to drop or withdraw from a class due to academic performance, this must be completed prior to Week 13 of the semester or equivalent dates for shorter sessions. After the thirteenth week (or equivalent), students will not be permitted to withdraw from a class due to poor academic performance in the class.

3.8.2.3: Withdrawals unrelated to academic performance. After the thirteenth week (or equivalent), students must submit a request for an exception to the withdrawal deadline. This request must be a non-academic, extenuating circumstance beyond the student's control that prevented them from withdrawing by the deadline and is supported by appropriate documentation.

3.8.2.4: Post-term withdrawals or issues. After the end of the sixteenth week, students must submit a request for an exception to the withdrawal deadline. If there is an error in the grading of a course, the student should work with the instructor by following the procedure for a change of grade (see Section 6.6).

3.8.3: Change of Pass/Not-Pass option. A student may change the Pass/Not-Pass option for a course during the first four weeks of a regular semester or the first two weeks of a summer session by obtaining the signature of the academic advisor next to the appropriate notation on the schedule-revision form.

3.8.4: Change of auditing option. A student may alternate between audit and credit status during an academic session. A change from audit to credit or credit to audit may occur only during the first six weeks. The regular audit deadline is the Friday ending the first week of class. The late audit deadline is the Friday ending the sixth week of class. Approval of a regular change of auditing status in the first week of class requires a signature or written acknowledgment from the student's advisor and a representative from the Financial Aid Office (when applicable). Approval of a late change in auditing status during weeks two through six requires a signature or written acknowledgment from the course instructor, academic advisor, and a representative from the Financial Aid Office (when applicable).

3.9: Withdrawal from the university. Withdrawal from the university is normally accomplished by withdrawing from each course in which the student was enrolled. Special circumstances which can affect the withdrawal are specified below.

3.9.1: Withdrawal for military service. Any student called to active military duty may present a copy of their military service orders and (a) withdraw from all courses and receive a 100% refund of tuition and fees at any time during the semester through the end of final examinations or (b) with the permission of each instructor, receive an Incomplete or final grade in the courses

taken. Such requests and documentation may be presented by the student or other responsible party who has the student's permission to make the request. Refunds of fees will not be made if the student receives a grade and credit for the course, and all refunds will be adjusted as required by financial aid regulations. If a withdrawal is processed after the fourth week of classes, the grade of W will be assigned.

3.9.2: Withdrawal for personal circumstances. Students who seek to withdraw from PFW after the thirteenth week of classes, based on personal circumstances, should contact the Office of Student Conduct & CARE for guidance about the process.

MEMORANDUM

TO: Cigdem Gurgur, Chair  
Senate Executive Committee

FROM: Elva Resendez, Chair  
Ad Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force

DATE: 12/6/2024

SUBJ: Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force 2023-2024 Report

---

# Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force 2023-2024 Report

## Description of the Task Force

### Preamble:

In Spring 2022, the PFW Faculty Senate approved the creation of an Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force to review the existing PFW Academic Regulations. The main goals of this Task Force are to ensure there are no remnants of Indiana University Academic Regulations and to suggest situations in which PFW should consider updating Academic Regulations to mirror PWL.

The Educational Policy Committee (EPC) requested a Task Force be created because this task was “found the workload to beyond that which can be expected of a standing committee within the academic year” (SD 21-37)

The Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force was approved for working over the Summer of 2023 with the approval for a \$3,000 stipend for each 9-month Faculty member to work over the summer (by OAA). The Task Force could not find enough participating members.

During the Academic year of 2023-2024, the Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force was approved to work over the Academic year but without the \$3,000 stipend. The Task Force still could not find enough participating members to work.

## Official Task Force Formation:

At the beginning of the 2023-2024 Academic Year, the Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force found enough members, knowing the stipend would not apply.

### **Task Force Members:**

Elva Resendez (Chair)  
Chris Huang  
Terri Swim  
Barton Price  
Nurgul Aitalieva  
Jay Johns

## Explanation of Work:

The Ad-Hoc Academic Regulations Task Force met as a group 16 times over the 2023-2024 Academic year. The Task Force reviewed (roughly) 700 Academic Regulations between Purdue University West Lafayette and Purdue University Fort Wayne. These regulations are broken into the following categories:

- **Academic Notice and Separation:** Covers policies on academic probation and dismissal.
- **Academic Programs:** Outlines the available programs and their respective requirements.
- **Academic Year and Calendar:** Details the structure of the academic year, including semester durations and examination schedules.
- **Classes:** Addresses policies related to class attendance and participation.
- **Degree Requirements:** Specifies the criteria for earning various degrees.
- **Financial Obligations and Responsibilities:** Discusses students' financial responsibilities to the university.
- **Grades and Grade Reports:** Explains the grading system and the issuance of grade reports.
- **PFW Academic Regulations Not Found in PWL.**
- **Registration and Course Assignments:** Provides guidelines on course enrollment and assignment processes.
- **Scheduling of Exams:** Provides information on the timing and administration of exams.
- **Scholastic Recognition:** Details honors and recognitions for academic achievements.
- **Scholastic Records:** Describes the maintenance and access to academic records.

To this point, the Task Force has reviewed every Academic Regulation and has completed the following in regards to PFW:

1. Made changes to the outdated or non-applicable language, such as:
  - a. Ensuring any address is specific to PFW rather than PWL.
  - b. Swapping the term “President” with “Chancellor”
2. Created editing notes for the creation of the Academic Regulation suggested updates.
3. Identified PFW regulations that should mirror PWL or be specific to PFW.

All of this information is currently in “Taking Notes” form and not arranged in a way that would be easy to decipher or aligned with the overall goals of this Task Force. To finalize the tasks, many previous Task Force members, in addition to the new Registrar Tara Lewis, have volunteered to spend time in December 2024 and January 2025 to make this information presentable, even though the Task Force officially disbanded at the end of the 2023-2024 Academic year.

MEMORANDUM

TO Fort Wayne Senate

FROM: Cigdem Gurgur, Presiding Officer

DATE: 12/18/2024

SUBJ: Composition of the Intellectual Diversity Complaint Advisory Review Board

---

In accordance with SD 24-6 “SEA 202 Intellectual Diversity Complaint Advisory Review Board,” of which one adopted clause is:

the Chancellor and the Faculty Chairs will select seven (7) members to serve on the Advisory Review Board from the panel of volunteers, each from a different major unit: one regular and one alternate member serving an initial term of one year each, a second regular and the second alternate member serving a term of two-years each, the third regular member serving a full three-year term, and two additional members serving one year to help with crafting policies

The Chancellor and the Faculty Chairs met on December 16 and selected the following faculty:

- Regular members  
Noor Borbieva O’Neill; COLA, Anthropology (three-year term)  
Cheu-jei Lee; SOE, Teacher Education (two-year term)  
Betsy Berry; COS, Mathematics (one-year term)
- Alternates  
Shannon Johnson; LIB (two-year term)  
Kent Kauffman; DSB, Economics and Finance (one-year term)
- Policy advice (one year term)  
Paresh Mishra; ETCS, Organizational Leadership  
Rebecca Coffman; VPA, Art and Design